Questions and Answers to RFP623-P-06-013 

1. The IVL (Interested Vendor List) is not working. Please advise if and when this will work and or advise web address.


The IVL is activated. Registration is the responsibility of the interested vendor. You may register at www.fbo.gov.
2. Is there a maximum the prime contractor must perform with its own work force?

No. There is no maximum.

 

3. Section H.16 states, "the Contractor shall set-aside 10% or more of the total subcontracted amount for U.S. small business concerns, small disadvantaged (includes 8a), small women-owned, small veteran-owned, and small service disabled veteran-owned business concerns." (Bolded Italics added). The maximum required small business provision is 10% IF prime contractor subcontracts 100 % of the work. Request that the phrase/word, "subcontracted" be removed so that the requirement for the total subcontract percentage be 10% for US Small Businesses.

 

The requirement remains as stated. 

4. What is the length of the 2 lane gravel road in Task Order #2? Is it a design/build project?

The Illustrative Task Order #2 states that the Farasika-Maridi-Mundri road length is 170kms in the first paragraph on page J-12 of the Attachments.  

The Illustrative Task Order indicates that the contractor is to “design and construct” a road.

  

5. How does this project interface with the Louis Berger Group Capacity Building Component, the World Food Program Emergency Road Repair and Demining, and NRECA International Southern Sudan Rural Electrification contracts, all awarded and in process through a portion of the five-year period of performance for the Sudan Infrastructure Program. We are also interested in any suggestions for prospective partners (NGOs, universities, etc.) who have or are currently providing technical assistance for policy formation, planning studies, training, and operations and maintenance services. 

 

There is no direct linkage with other projects, but the Contractor will need to collaborate with other on-going USAID and other programs related to the infrastructure sector. Since resources and local capacities are limited, but assistance levels expected to be high, coordination may be a challenge. Nonetheless, sharing of experience and work plans will be essential to maximize development assistance efficiency and impacts. The USAID CTO will assist in coordinating activities.
 

USAID may not recommend prospective partners.

6. The amendment canceling the previous RFP (RFP 623-P-05-024) places an emphasis on stabilization in southern Sudan (with reference to the Fragile States Strategy), but the current RFP (RFP 623-P-06-013) appears not to include a significant stabilization component.  Does USAID intend for stabilization activities to be part of this RFP or does it intend to integrate stabilization activities into a separate procurement?

There will not be a separate procurement.

7. Page C-12 of Section C, Paragraph 3. Cost Control Reporting System. This paragraph asks that the “…Contractor develop a cost control reporting system including financial data…” Is this system required with the proposal response for Task Order 1, or so many days after Task Order is awarded? 

After TO#1 is awarded

8. Task Order #1 Evaluation Criteria, Technical Understanding & Management Approach (i) will evaluate “Proposed management structure and approach to program implementation including mobilization, identification of critical program objectives, and a timetable of program implementation and understanding of the constraints to operating in the social, political and security environment of Sudan.” The basic IQC Evaluation Criteria, Technical Understanding & Management Approach, (i) and part of (ii) evaluates the same information. 

Please clarify where USAID will evaluate this criterion – in Task Order #1 or the Basic IQC. If it is both, as indicated in the RFP, how can a contractor adhere to the additional requirement that “Information required for the basic IQC technical proposal should not be repeated in the Technical Proposal for Task Order #1 and illustrative Task Order #2. (pg. L-11, first sentence under Section L.10)”  

These are not identical.  The basic IQC proposal requires offerors to propose their management structure and approach to overall IQC management, while TO#1 asks offerors to propose a management structure and approach for solely TO #1 service.  

9. Page M-3, Staffing Plan & Approach to Quality Control.  This section makes reference to Task Order #1.  Should it actually make reference to Task Order #2?  

Yes. This should make reference to Task Order #2. 


10. Please confirm that the key personnel for Task Order #1 include the Chief of Party, Senior Engineer, Manager Acquisition/Procurement, and Manager Finance/Administration. 

Confirmed

11. Page L-2, L.3(c)(2): Does the "first page" requirement refer to the technical proposal or the cost proposal?
Both Technical and Cost Proposals.


12. Page L-13, L.11, Instructions for the Preparation of the Cost/Business Proposal, paragraph #1: "Offerors shall submit Cost Proposals for the basic IQC . . .". Page M-4, M.4, Price/Business Evaluation: paragraph #1: "As stated in Section L, no Cost Proposal is required for the basic IQC." Please clarify.   


A detailed cost proposal is required for only TO#1 and a cost proposal with a general estimation of budget requirements is required for TO#2. A budget proposal is not required for the total $700 million IQC, but various certifications and proposed fee and overhead rates are required in a cost proposal for the IQC. 

13. What role do you expect the GOSS State Governments to play in the approval and implementation process for construction task orders undertaken by the IQC contractor in their respective regions? 

USAID works in close collaboration with the GoSS State and Federal governments to plan and implement projects.  However, approval of Task Orders will be the sole responsibility of USAID.

14. A number of illustrative technical assistance activities are called for under the contract.  Another USAID contractor is carrying out technical assistance to support institutional and policy development in the infrastructure sector and has been charged with many of the activities listed in the RFP.  Will part of their scope of work be transferred to this IQC contractor?  

No

15. Will other contractors active in the infrastructure sector be allowed to participate as either a prime or named subcontractor on the IQC contract? 

Yes.

16. Does USAID anticipate direct procurement of construction-related equipment and materials, through separate task orders, to support construction work performed under other task orders or will this be incorporated within each construction task order issued? 

It is the responsibility of the offeror to present the most effective approach for each Request for Task Order Proposal. If it is in the interest of the Sudan Infrastructure Program, USAID may consider direct procurement under a Task Order or other options for efficient program implementation. 
17. The IQC contract has a ceiling of $700m and the RFP states that the majority of this budget is likely to be used for construction task orders.  In terms of construction risk allocation and management, does USAID expect the IQC contractor to bear the entire risk? 

Yes

18. Page F-5, Step 4: Proposed Preparation and Negotiation (a) prescribes how the contractor shall format a Task Order proposal. In preparing the Task Order #1 and #2 responses, please clarify if this format or the formats described in Section M should be used. 

Offerors should organize proposals for Task Orders No. #1 and #2 following the outline and guidelines found in Section L and M. All information required by the standard format, provided on Page F-5, Step 4 for Task Order proposals, should be incorporated into the proposals.

19. Section L.9(b) page L-8 provides  that “charts, such as Management Structure Organizational Chart(s)” are not included in the page limitation. Are tables, pie charts, line graphs and other such illustrative exhibits included in the definition of “charts and such” and exempt from the page count if included in an attachment and summarized in the text within the section?

Full-page charts and graphs are exempted. Smaller charts and graphs should be incorporated within narrative.

20. Section L.7(a)(2) allows for electronic submittal of the proposal. If the electronic submittal is submitted by the closing time/date, and we follow up with the hard copy and CD submittals, do they also need to be delivered by the closing date/time? Or can the hard copy and CDs be shipped via FedEx or DSL by the closing date to arrive in Nairobi a few days after the closing?

Hard copies and CD submittals following submittal of electronic submittals can arrive after the closing date. Note however, that USAID is not responsible for any failure of transmittal or on-time receipt of electronic submittals.

21. Would USAID consider extending the proposal period by 1 or 2 weeks considering that the pre-proposal conference and subsequent answers to questions fall late in the proposal phase?

No. An extension is not anticipated.
22. TO-02 Yambio Road: In what kind of template would you like TO #2 submitted?
Offerors should organize proposals for Task Orders No. #1 and #2 following the outline and guidelines found in Section L and M. All information required by the standard format, provided on Page F-5, Step 4 for Task Order proposals, should be incorporated into the proposals.

23. Cost/Price Proposal: How would USAID like to see the cost/price information? Section L.11 (pg L-13) states that the offerors shall submit cost proposals for the basic IQC and for Task Order #1 and Illustrative Task Order #2. It also provides that the information should be organized as it states in L.11. That could be interpreted to either mean in three separate cost volumes or as one document with tabbed sections separating the different parts. Please clarify.

Either way is acceptable, but USAID would prefer that the cost/price proposals be submitted as one document with three separate sections for the different required cost proposals.

24. Will there be a site visit?  What is the best way to visit the site?  Are there special clearances and security requirements that a contractor needs to fulfill before visiting the site?

No site visit will be scheduled. Contractors wishing to visit the site should obtain a Sudanese visa or travel permit from a Sudanese embassy. There are no special security clearances required to enter South Sudan.

25. Is it a requirement for the prime contractor to have a facility security clearance prior to award?  If the company is otherwise eligible for a security clearance, could the security clearance be obtained with USAID sponsorship after award?  Can the requirement for a security clearance be met by utilizing a subcontractor who has an active security clearance?

Section K.2 requires the Contractor to have a "Facility Clearance" at the "Secret" level. This can be obtained as needed following award of the Contract. 

26. Does USAID see the need to mobilize a minimum number of technical consultants at the onset of the contract, or should consultant effort be provided "just in time" as workload dictates?  

The bidders are responsible for proposing their technical approach to staffing.  This includes both numbers of staff and scheduling. Scheduling to make most efficient use of staff and resources, while meeting contract requirements, is obviously desirable.

27. Does USAID envision work in all sectors initially, or will the start-up task orders be focused in the transport sector?

Initial work will be mainly, but not exclusively, in the transport sector.

28. Are there any special requirements for civilian security forces operating in the Sudan?  Are there any restrictions on weapons carried by civilian security forces?

Not to our knowledge at the present time, but this is the Contractor's responsibility to determine.

29. Are there any special visa requirements for US citizens or Third Country Nationals to enter the Sudan and work there?  

Yes, just as there are special visa requirements for non-US citizens to enter and work in the US or any other country.  You may contact the Sudanese Embassy with your specific questions.  Here is the link to their website with general information about visas: http://www.sudanembassy.org/default.asp?page=visarequirements. 
30. Does USAID have a list of vetted or preferred subcontractors available?

No

31. What extraction assistance would be available to the contractor in the event of the outbreak of civil war or civil unrest?

USAID will provide routine up-dates on security and evacuation contingency planning for all contractors and grantees. As in any country, the Contractor will be responsible for monitoring the security situation and maintaining contingency plans for evacuation.

32. What would be the interface or relationship between the contractor currently providing planning and engineering and the contractor?

Relations between implementing partners (contractors and grantees) on USAID funded programs are expected to be collegial and professional. (See Question #5.) 

33. Section C, C-13 describes demining and UXO issues.  Who will be responsible for UXO and mine clearance, UNMAS or the contractor?

The contractor will be responsible for demining either through issuance of a TO for demining or for including demining activities within TOs. Demining will be coordinated through the New Sudan Mine Action Directorate, which is receiving assistance from UNMAS. This Directorate and UNMAS will be responsible for certification of demining companies and organizations.

34. Task Order #2 shows a plug number of $250,000 for Security and $500,000 for demining.  Will the contractor be allowed to provide these services or are these provided for the contractor?

These services will not generally be provided for the contractor. The contractor may provide these services or sub-contract them.

35. Will the contractor have access to any in-country medical services?

There will be no access to US Government provided medical services, which currently do not exist in southern Sudan. There are a limited number of NGOs and private medical services and Sudanese government medical facilities that provide a range of emergency and routine medical services.  The Contractor is responsible for arranging medical services for its personnel.

36. Are UN peacekeeping forces currently operating in Sudan and specifically in the area surrounding Juba?

Yes, UN peacekeeping forces are currently operating in Sudan and there is a UN peace keeping operation based in Juba.

37. Delivery of Proposals:  In the RFP it is indicated that that both hard copies and an electronic copy are to be submitted.  Section L.7 also indicates that emailing the proposal is acceptable.  Do we still need to supply the original plus copies (of IQC, TO #1, TO#2 and cost) in addition to the email version?  Or will the email version suffice and negate the need for the hard copies?

USAID should receive a hard Copy Original of the proposals, even if it is submitted a few days after the electronic version. Note however, that USAID is not responsible for any failure of transmittal or on-time receipt of electronic submittals. (See also Question #20.)
38. Task Order #1 and Illustrative Task Order #2:  Instructions indicate that the task order proposals should not duplicate information included in the base contract proposal.  On page L-11 the RFP indicates that past performance report short forms and SF 294 forms are included in the technical proposal for TO #1 and TO #2.  However, in Section M, Evaluation Factors award there is no mention of past performance or SF 294 for either TO #1 or TO#2.  Is past performance and SF 294 to be included in the Task Order Proposals, and if so, will be we be penalized if it is the same information as what is included in the base contract proposal? 

Past performance information and SF 294s are required only for the basic IQC and not for Task Orders.

39. Contractors are required to submit proposed ceiling rates on fixed fees.  Are major subcontractors or teaming partners required to submit their own proposed ceilings on fixed fees?

Yes.

40. Contractors are required to propose a ceiling on indirect rates.  Are major subcontractors or teaming partners required to submit their own proposed indirect ceiling rates?

Yes.

41. Is a soft copy of the South African General Technical Specification SATCC 1998 standards available to the contractors?

No. These may be purchased through COLTO: Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Works, published by COLTO (Committee of Land Transport Officials) and obtainable from the South African National Roads Agency Limited, PO Box 415, Pretoria, 0001. (See: http://www.nra.co.za/newspublications.html).
42. Illustrative Task Order #2, Section III, Deliverables, requires a detailed construction schedule with cash flow.  Does this mean that a fully cost loaded schedule is required for submittal with the Business/cost proposal?  Please clarify.

No, a fully loaded schedule is not required.  This is an Illustrative Task Order whose intent is to be used to determine the extent of the TO#1 contractor's understanding of a design/build TO.  We wish to ascertain the Contractor's Technical Understanding & Management Approach and on their Staffing Plan & Approach to Quality Control. General cost estimates only are required to demonstrate the offeror’s understanding of Task Order requirements and implementation approaches.

43. Contractors may be authorized up to a six-day work week in the field with no premium pay.  How are Contractors reimbursed for hours expended outside the normal workday?

Contractors’ personnel will not be reimbursed for work outside the normal workday without special approval from CO.

44. Is it a valid assumption that as long as any items (e.g. equipment) required to perform tasks under the contract (e.g. satellite phones, modern laptop computers, video-conferencing equipment, etc.) are licensed, controlled and dispositioned consistent with the requirements of Attachment J-4 to the RFP and OFAC License No. SU-884 (a), dated 16 September 2004, there are no restrictions on specific types, models or usage of said items? 

While USAID’s OFAC license above does cover importing most usual kinds of equipment, certain types and models may be restricted and require a supplemental license from OFAC and Bureau of Industry and Security (“BIS”) (for example personal computers, including laptops, that do exceed a composite theoretical performance of 6,500 millions of theoretical operations per second (MTOPS).  See the Department of Commerce’s website concerning frequently asked questions about Sudan http://www.bis.doc.gov/PoliciesAndRegulations/SudanFAQs.htm#2, especially “6. What types of equipment are eligible under this License Exception?”

Some NGO’s working in Sudan have received licenses from BIS which limit the time they may keep the equipment in the Sudan, or require them to take the equipment out of the country when they have finished their project.

The Contractor will be responsible for obtaining its own legal counsel on all OFAC and BIS questions, including those on legal restrictions and usage. 
 

45. Is it a valid assumption that paragraph L.11(b)(i) directs us to use the actual unburdened daily rate shown in AID Form 1420-17 – Contractor Employee Biographical Data Sheets (Attachment J-10) for all proposed candidates (e.g. all candidates specifically named) in our proposal? 

Yes, it is a valid assumption.

46. Sections F.4.A and F.4.C include similar statements regarding charging of costs for key personnel, specifically: F.4.A states “…portions of their time may be directly charged to individual Task Orders,” and F.4.C states “…except to the extent that s/he may be charged to task orders….”   Is it a valid assumption that Cost Proposals may contain portions of direct time charges (e.g. budgets) for listed key personnel? 

Yes. 

47. Section L.6 (g) of the RFP defines the estimated funding level of $10 to $15 million for Task Order #1 over the 5 years of the contract. This level of funding does not appear to match all the tasks listed in Section III of Attachment J-2, including the fully burdened labor costs for the estimated level-of-effort presented on page J-11.    Is USAID contemplating increasing the estimated funding level for TO#1? 

No, not at this time.
48. Is it a valid assumption that USAID may establish a subcontract dollar threshold (e.g. $500,000 or other amount) below which Contractors with an approved procurement system may issue subcontracts without the consent of USAID? (Reference H.24 page H-12 of the RFP) 

This is subject to negotiation based on the offeror’s proposal and proposed procurement system. While it appears reasonable to exempt sub-contracts of under a specific amount (perhaps less than $100,000) from the requirement for specific approval of the Contracting Officer, this will depend on review of the Contractor’s procurement systems.

49. Is it a valid assumption that USAID will incorporate an economic price adjustment clause (such as FAR 52.216-4) into fixed price task orders, to address unstable/unpredictable labor and material costs often encountered in developing nation economies? 

Yes, it’s a valid assumption for contracts of longer duration, say multi-year contracts. However, if a TO is for work to be done within a short time period, say 6 months, then it might not be necessary to incorporate the price adjustment clause.  It will be the responsibility of the TO#1 contractor to assess the risks and recommend if price adjustment clauses are desirable for fixed price TOs.

50. Is it a valid assumption that USAID will incorporate Alt I into the clause at FAR 52.245-2, “Government Property (Fixed Price Contracts)”? 

Yes, it is a valid assumption.

51. Is it a valid assumption that the Prime Contractor, its subcontractors, and their respective personnel be exempt, under a Strategic Objectives Agreement, the 1958 US/Sudan Bilateral Agreement, or otherwise, from all GOSS and GNU taxes, duties, and levies?  If it is not a valid assumption, is it a valid assumption that USAID will reimburse such taxes, duties and levies? 

USAID does not have Strategic Objectives Agreements with the GNU or GoSS at this time.  The US Government and USAID consider that the 1958 US/Sudan Bilateral Agreement is currently in force. 

The Bilateral (Paragraph 7) provides the standard provisions concerning exemption of taxation as follows:

 

“7. Any supplied, materials, equipment or funds introduced or acquired in the Republic of the Sudan by the Government of the US, or any contractor financed by that Government, for purposes of any program or project conducted pursuant to this Agreement and on a grant basis shall, while such supplies, materials, equipment or funds are used in connections with such a program or project, be exempt from any taxes on ownership or use of property, and any other taxes, investment or deposit requirements and currency controls in the Republic of the Sudan and the import, export, purchase, use or disposition of any such supplies , materials, equipment or funds in connection with such a program or project shall be exempt from any tariffs, customs, duties, import and export taxes, taxes on purchase or disposition of property, and any other taxes or similar charges in the Republic of Sudan.
All personnel except citizens and permanent residents of the Republic of the Sudan, whether employees of the Government of the US or individuals and employees of public or private organizations under contract with the Government of the Republic of the Sudan or its agencies or the Government of the US or its agencies who are present in the Republic of Sudan for the purpose of performing work in connection herewith and whose entrance into the country has been approved by the Government of the Republic of Sudan shall be exempt from income upon which they are obligated to pay income or social security taxes to the Government of the US, and from taxes on purchase, ownership, use or disposition or personal movable property intended for their own use.  Such personnel and members of their families shall receive the same treatment with respect to the payment of customs and import and export duties on personal effects, equipment and supplies imported into the Republic of the Sudan for their own use, as is accorded by the Government of the republic of the Sudan to diplomatic members of the American Embassy in the Republic of the Sudan.”

In addition to paying  income taxes for Sudanese staff and probably some fuel taxes, VAT on locally purchased items, vehicle registration fees, etc., the Contractor may find that new unexpected taxes may be imposed by the new Government of South Sudan.  In such circumstances the contractor could contact the CTO who would consider whether the taxes, duties or levies are unavoidable and then would identify them as cost-reimburseable.”
52. Is it a reasonable assumption that the contract will contain a “War Risks” clause (in addition to FAR 52.228-4 for Workers’ Compensation) under which the Government will assume the risk of loss or damage to completed or partially completed work performed under the contract, and/or material, equipment or installations used or acquired for use under the contract, to the extent such loss or damage is a result of hostile or warlike action? 

Yes

53.  Will the main contract and program office be in Nairobi?

For the Contractor, the main office will be in Juba. For USAID, for the initial period of the contract the USAID Mission Acquisition and Assistance Officer will be based in Nairobi. The USAID technical office with the CTO overseeing the contract is expected to be based in Juba by September 2006. 

54.   Will the program office be separate from the contract administration office?

For the initial period of the contract the USAID Mission Acquisition and Assistance Officer will be based in Nairobi. The USAID technical office with the CTO overseeing the contract is expected to be based in Juba by September 2006. 

55. Will there be an office in Khartoum?

Task Orders #1 and #2 do not require an office in Khartoum.

56. Besides Juba, where will USAID have offices in southern Sudan in order to coordinate this contract?

At this time, no other USAID regional offices are contemplated outside of Juba in Southern Sudan.
57.  Will USAID maintain a logistics hub at Lokichoggio?

No, USAID does not currently have or plan to have a logistics hub at Lokichoggio, Kenya.

58.  Does the contract contemplate USAID planning and operations personnel to work alongside the USAID program manager? 

No. The Contract does not contemplate Task Order provision of staff to work within USAID alongside the USAID program manager.

59. With reference to the captioned project, please confirm whether actual repair, rehabilitation and construction related to infrastructure envisaged under this project is to be carried out by U.S. A/E firms or whether USAID envisions such firms to under this contract to provide technical assistance and training services to build the capacity of Sudanese firms and organizations to repair, rehabilitate and construct vital infrastructure on their own with U.S. firms providing construction supervision.

The procurement is open to all geographic code 935 countries.

60. Is it a correct interpretation that work related to airport/airstrip rehabilitation is likely to constitute a minor level of effort under this solicitation?
Yes. The level of effort with regards to airport/airstrip work is currently undetermined, but initial infrastructure activities are not expected to emphasize work in this area.
61. Please clarify the step-by-step approach envisioned by USAID to Task Orders subsequent to Task Order #1 under this indefinite quantity contract (IQC) mechanism, particularly as it relates to responsibility for construction risk associated with subsequent Task Orders, and notably given the two primary methods of project implementation proscribed. Will the program manager contracted via Task Order #1 be solely responsible, professionally and financially, for performance of all subsequent task orders, including construction? Or, does USAID intend for the program manager to competitively procure subsequent Task Orders for the two primary methods of project implementation envisioned per Article C.8, whereby professional and financial liability for sub-contracted Task Orders resides solely with the sub-contractors? If the latter, who would be eligible to compete for task orders and who would be precluded? In addition, please elaborate on USAID's technical role in project implementation, specifically with regard to oversight of project/construction activities.
The IQC prime contractor will be responsible professionally and financially for performance on all Task Orders. When work is done by sub-contractors competitively selected by the prime contractor, quality controls systems, performance bonds or guarantees and other mechanisms may be used by the prime to hold the sub-contractors responsible for works. USAID however will look to the prime contractor to be responsible for professional and financial matters relating to the works. Eligibility to compete for task orders would be determined by the prime contractor following FAR regulations and subject to USAID approvals. USAID will prepare Requests for Task Order Proposals, evaluate Task Order Proposals and negotiate Task Orders, and monitor progress and quality standards of work and adherence to design specifications.

62. In competition for the award of this IQC Contract does any advantage accrue to the incumbent contractor providing services under the SIP/Capacity Building Contract?
No. While presence in a country and engagement on other contract service provision can be an asset in knowing the country and development context, this can also at times be a disadvantage. USAID/Sudan has numerous implementing partners (perhaps 40 to 50 in total) all of which benefit from some experience and knowledge of the country. The Task Orders included in the current solicitation do not involve capacity building, although such services are likely under future Task Orders. However, any such future Task Orders for capacity building would not involve work in geographic areas, technical areas, or time periods that would over-lap with the current SIP/Capacity Building Project. USAID has reviewed the solicitation and current program and concluded that there is no conflict of interest inherent in the on-going activities of current partners active in the infrastructure and other sectors and the current IQC Contract solicitation. 
63. The current estimate of FY06 funding for the Infrastructure Services Project is $30 million (though this is not certain and could change). Will all of this funding have to be committed to Task Orders by September 30, 2006?
Yes. The FY 06 funding will have to be committed to Task Orders by 9/30/06. Following signing of the IQC Contract and Task Order #1, USAID proposes to immediately issue to the Contractor requests for Task Order Proposals for a number of additional Task Orders to be issued this fiscal year. This may involve three to six additional Task Orders, which will begin in FY06 but will provide for incremental funding over the next year or more.
64. Will sub-contractors be required to compete for work under Task Orders?

The plan for administration and management of the IQC and its Task Orders is to be part of the offeror's technical proposal. Sub-contractors identified for work under Task Order #1 will not, of course, have to compete for this work. For new Task Orders, competition may be the most efficient means of determining price reasonableness and best value for the services required.

65. Are relevant allowances (post differential and danger pay) allowable for the six day work week?
These allowances would be allowable under USAID regulations, but are also dependant on the Contractor's policy and cost proposal.

66. Section B-9 requires that compensation of personnel under this contract be in accordance with AIDAR 752.7007, “Personnel Compensation (July 1996).” AIDAR 752.7007 limits contractor compensation to no higher than the equivalent to Executive Service level ES-6. However, there is no current compensation level of ES-6 in the civil service pay schedules. Please clarify the limits of compensation for contractor personnel.
The correct clause relating to compensation of personnel under this contract should be AIDAR 752.7007, “Personnel Compensation (August 2004)” which states as follows: “AIDAR Clause 752.7007 “Personnel Compensation” is revised to read as follows: The following clause shall be used in all USAID cost-reimbursement contracts. PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (August 2004) (a) Direct compensation of the Contractor’s personnel will be in accordance with the Contractor’s established policies, procedures, and practices, and the cost principles applicable to this contract.

(b) Compensation (i.e., the employee’s base annual salary plus overseas recruitment incentive, if any) which exceeds the maximum rate for agencies without a certified SES performance appraisal system, as published in the Federal Register, will be reimbursed only with the approval of the Contracting Officer, as prescribed in 731.205-6(d) or 731.371(b), as applicable.” 

67. According to section F.3, Task Orders may be issued that require performance beyond the five-year term of this contract. However, Task Order #1 provides important organizational components necessary for management and operations under this contract, but its period of performance is five years only. If another Task Order is issued calling for performance that extends beyond the five-year period of this contract, will Task Order #1 be extended accordingly?
 This is very likely but will depend on circumstances.
68. Section F.4 indicates that this contract is structured to include a “basic IQC” and Task Orders, with the basic IQC funded by “indirect costs,” separate and apart from direct Task Order funding. However, according to the cost principles at FAR 31.202(a), “any cost allocable to a single, final cost objective must be charged as a direct cost.” Any contract awarded in connection with this RFP would represent a “final cost objective” for the contractor, and a requirement to fund any effort directly allocable to this specific contract such as a dedicated Project Manager / Coordinator position or other dedicated positions identified elsewhere in the RFP as indirect costs is contrary to FAR 31.202. Please clarify.   
 The individual task orders will constitute “final cost objectives”.

69. In Section F.8, the text of this clause makes reference to “Section C, Tangible Results and Deliverables.” However, no such language appears in Section C. Please clarify. 
Clause F.8 will be revised to read as follows: “Evaluation of the Contractor’s performance in accordance with the performance standards set forth in individual Task Orders will be conducted jointly by the CTO and the Contracting Officer, and shall form the basis for the Contractor’s permanent record with regard to this contract.”
70. In Section H.4, certain items identified as prohibited goods and services under paragraph (b) of this clause – such as those in (2) and (3) – are items that routinely are required for maintaining physical security at work sites. Please clarify whether the contractor will be able to acquire items of this nature, and the process(es) associated with obtaining exemptions from the requirements of this clause.
This question reflects an excessively broad and rigid interpretation of Clause H.4(b). Even though military equipment is listed as ineligible for procurement under the contract, this would not restrict procurement (if warranted) of tents and other camp equipment. Likewise, the clause should not restrict the procurement of other equipment for normal development program uses. The contract will not require procurement of goods or services in support of police and law enforcement activities. Furthermore, construction sites will likely require equipment and services to ensure security (e.g., guard services, sensors or security cameras), but these would not be used for surveillance of individuals. During contract implementation, if questions arise on eligibility of any equipment or services needed by the project, the contractor can contact the Mission Acquisition and Assistance Officer to seek clarifications or required waivers and approvals.

71. In Section L.9, the proposal preparation instructions in this provision require offerors to have proposal sections for the Basic IQC, Task Order #1 and Illustrative Task Order #2. Basic IQC proposal content requirements include some items not included in Task Order #1 requirements – i.e., corporate organization and capabilities, past performance, and past performance using small businesses – but the areas of technical understanding and management approach, and staffing plan and qualifications of proposed personnel are very similar, and in some instances, redundant, functionally.  Beyond the specified key personnel for Task Order #1 and the Basic IQC, there is no real distinction made between the operational functions of these two areas. As presented in the RFP, there is no common basis to guide offerors in the development of meaningful performing organizations for the Basic IQC and Task Order #1. Further, the fact that Section M, provision M.4, states that “no cost proposal is required for the basic IQC” leaves open the possibility for offerors to game the cost proposal by attributing performance responsibilities to the Basic IQC rather than to Task Order #1, which easily could lead to unrealistically low proposed costs that would provide unfair advantage in the evaluation for award. As a single-award IQC, all costs reasonably anticipated for performance should be estimated and included in cost proposals. Since Task Order #1 provides the basic management and operating infrastructure for the contract, could the proposal requirements for the Basic IQC and Task Order #1 be combined and the proposal preparation instructions along with the evaluation plan adjusted accordingly? Please clarify.
While Task Order #1 reflects the initial phase of operationalizing the IQC Contract, future Task Orders under the IQC may significantly expand the activity in other geographic or technical areas provided for under the basic IQC. This provides justification for the distinction between the proposals for the basic IQC and for Task Order #1.

As to “gaming the cost proposal”, it is unlikely that offerors would propose to carry out any significant performance responsibilities under the basic IQC when there will be no costs reimbursed for such services. Any such proposals would appear unrealistic and would be explored fully during negotiations. The proposal for the basic IQC will present the offeror’s capability, experience, and planned approach to corporate oversight. The proposal for task Order #1 will present the capabilities and approach relevant to provision of required Task Order #1 services.

Offerors’ proposals should therefore include separate proposal sections for the Basic IQC, Task Order #1 and Illustrative Task Order #2
72. In Sections L.9(b) and L.10(b), these two paragraphs state that the use of 11x17 inch paper is limited to two pages for the Basic IQC, for Task Order #1, and for Task Order #2. Please clarify whether the 11x17 inch paper will be considered one page or two pages for each usage. 
Each 11x17 inch page will be considered one page.


73. The bid document on page 136 indicates that bridges are to be designed to the British standard of BS5400.  Why would USAID use a British standard instead of using the American bridge design standard known as American Assoc. of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO)? 

The GOSS Ministry of Transport and Roads will be adopting bridge standards compatible with those in northern Sudan and neighboring countries and is expected to adopt British standards. Pre-fabricated bridges meeting minimum specifications will be fully acceptable in future procurements.
74. Currently the solicitation has a NAICS of 541330, Engineering Services, with a size standard of $4.5M.  Is there any possibility of changing this to 237310, Highway, Street and Bridge Construction, with a $31.5M size limit?

Yes. This change will be made.

75. The basic IDQ Proposal: In Attachment J-7 Contractors Performance Report – Short form, Item #2 states, “Contract Number: New form adds Contract Title/Description as number two.” Are we to assume that a new form will be issued with the Contract Title/Description as one of the required data points?

 This is correct. Line #2 in the form should provide Contract Title and Description. 
76. Technical proposal format and organization for TO#1 and TO#2 are provided in Section L.10. Section L.10 instructions also reference section M. The instructions in Step 4 on page F-5 state: "Step 4: Proposal Preparation and Negotiation: The Contractor will submit proposal(s) for execution of the construction or design-build Task Order.  No separate payment will be made for the cost to prepare, submit and/or negotiate a Task Order proposal.  The proposal(s) will be evaluated and/or negotiated as sole source actions." These section F instructions cannot apply to the TO#1 Technical proposal, since it is not for execution of the construction or design-build task order. Also the TO#1 and TO#2 technical proposals cannot be evaluated and negotiated as sole source actions. Hence the guidance from USAID should be to follow the instructions in sections L and M for format and organization of the technical proposals. 

This is correct.
77. You should also note that section G.2 and G.3 request pricing information different from that required by section L.11 (b). The Section G.2 and G.3 requirements are for TO pricing after award of the basic IQC.
This is correct.
78. While the contract states that task orders may be issued either on a cost-plus or firm-fixed price basis, one of the FAR provisions we typically see is missing. This is FAR 52-228-7, “Liability to Third Parties”. Will USAID add this to the contract?

Yes
79. What have been the Sudan funding levels for infrastructure over the past five years?

Funding for infrastructure activities over the past five years was approximately as follows:

FY2002  -- $ 3 million

FY2003  -- $ 3 million

FY2004  -- $ 20 million

FY2005  -- $ 73 million

FY2006  -- $ 39 million

80. Is it acceptable to be seen as a principle subcontractor on more than one proposal?

Yes

81. The questions and answers indicate that this contract is primarily focused on infrastructure construction; however, Section L request that we address how we will respond to all requirements in the SOW.  The SOW places considerable emphasis on technical assistance for institutional development and capacity building in addition to the construction requirements and provisions of equipment and commodities.  (a) Is USAID interested in the capability of companies to meet all SOW requirements or primarily in just their construction capabilities? (b)  If you are interested in the capabilities in all areas, will the construction capabilities be weighted more heavily in the evaluation? 

USAID is interested in the capability of the companies to meet all SOW requirements. However, since design-build construction Task Orders are expected to represent the majority of work under the Contract, capability to implement such works will be especially important. 
82. Should the information provided in the questions and answers be considered as guidance or does it carry the same weight as the information provided in Sections C, L, and M of the RFP?  Is there an order of precedence that should be followed?

Questions and answers can be considered guidance and clarification of the RFP. The RFP and its amendments take precedence.
83. USAID/Afghanistan’s recently competed Afghanistan Infrastructure Rehabilitation Project (AIRP) TO 1 was priced at a maximum of $147.8 million for a $1.4 billion project.  TO 1 was approximately 10% of the total.  The Sudan Infrastructure Services Project (SISP) TO 1 is priced at $10—15 million for a $700 million project.  TO 1 is approximately 1%-2% of the total.  Both TO 1-s basically require the same services.  Yet even when differences in key staff and differences in work in Sudan vs. work in Afghanistan are factored in it is difficult to keep even within the $15 million budget.  Can the rethink its TO 1 planning levels?   Please confirm that there was no typographical error publishing the TO 1 Sudan level. 
There is no typographical error in the Task order #1 level. The Afghanistan project involved extensive work in different sector. The Sudan ceiling level is high, but actual funding levels are uncertain. Work in Sudan is expected to focus on low volume roads and less sophisticated construction works.

84. Attachment J2 Illustrative Task Order #2 Section I – Objectives mentions a standard town cross section is attached, but the two cross sections provided are both for the regular road, one for untouched sections and one for improved sections. Will a third cross section be provided? 

No. No third cross section will be provided.
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